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UNTTED STATES OF AMERICA
THE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

DIRECTOR,' OFFICE OF
PROVFSSIONAL RESPON SIBILITY,

Complainant,
V.

Complaint No, 2003-2

JOSEPH R, BANISTER,

Respondent,

ORDER ON RESPON DENT'S MOTION

TO DISMISS THE AMENDED COMPLAINT

Regpondent, on Oretober 29, 2003, moved, through counsel, for the dismissal of the
Amended Complaint’ in this matter, on the prounds that it (ails 10 state a claim upon which rehict
can by prantgd, ignores procedural requirements of the regulations governing the practice of
those before the Intemal Revenue Qervice (31 C.F.R. Part 10)(“Practice Regulations™), antl
beeause it violates Mr. Banister's right to due process. [RS filed a Response in opposilivn on
November 10, 2003,

lespondent first conlends that the Practice Regulations codify thosc allepations which
can comprise the basis for seeking a sanctjon for misconduct. While Respondent acknowledyos
that the amended Complaint adds the basis that Mr. Banister willfully failed to file tax returns, it
ssserts thal the relied upon regulation only proscribes a willful failure to make such returns, 31
IR § 10510, In contrast, pointing to 31 C.F.R. § 10.51(a), it contends that a willlul faiture
W fife a retum ¢an conshitite disreputable conduct only if the Respondent has [irst been convicted

e Director, Office of Professional Responsibility, Internal Revenuc Service.
Deparbment of the Treasury was formerly known as The Director of Practice. TFor convenience
and 0s a practical frame of reference, the Court will refer to the Complainant as the “IRS.”

I an Order issucd October 17, 2003, the Court granted the IRS motion to mmend the

({irst) Complaint. The amended Complaint added allegations that the Respondent failed 10 file
individua! income wx 1eturns {or the years 1999 through 2002,
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al the erime of willful fature 10 file a return.

[n response, TS, while acknowledging that 31 CF.R. §10.51(f) refers to willfully {ailing
{0 ke a Federal Tax retumn in violution of the revenue laws of the United States, rejects the
claiin that this reguirement is substantially differcnt {rom the {ailing to file a return. 1 comenids
that to prake niclum, ong must file that return. As IRS expresses it, “[ulatil one files the
required forms with the sovernment he hus not made a return but has mezely collected und
arpanized informption.” Responsc at 3.

The Court aprees with the position of the IRS. It would be nonsense to interpret this
repulation as Respondent SUZLCSTS. Such an interpretation would be inconsistent with the
complete lexl of Seetion 10.51(f) and its broad intent to address hose who would evade the duly
( ymake a tax return when required by ihe revenue laws. See also, Orwutsky v. Brady, 1991 1.5,
App. LEXIS 2613 at*4 (4™ Cir. 1991) in which that court repeatedly referred to an attomey who
failed o fHe his personal federal income tax relurns and then cited the predecessor regulation w
Qoetion 10.51¢1), (i.e. Scetion 10.51(d)), in support of the attorney’s disbarment. Both versions
refer 1o “wilifully failing to make a federal tax return,”

Ruspondent also asserts that the Amended Complaint fails (o state any [acts i support of
the contention that Bunister was required 1o file tax returns, and, instead, only “{ajlleg(es] mere
Jepal conelusions [which] fail[] to put Ranister on notice of what facts he will need 10 prepire his
defense.” Moltonat 3, Asa sccond theory in support of this contention, Respondent asserts that
31 O 8 10,59 Hinits the kind of supplemental allegations that can included in an amended
complaint, which is entitled ~Supplemental charges.” Respondent construcs this regulation as
limiting any suppiemental charges to “eonduct within the pending proceedings, such as fulse
testimony.” I, at 4. Respondent mainlains that its interpretation, limiting supplemental eharges
1y conduct (hat 1akes place within the proceedings” protects a practitioner’s right of duc process.
I,

A 10 the assertion that the Amended Complaint fails to allege sutticient facts to enable
Banister 1o prepare a delense, IRS responds that the Complaint is quite clear, as it lists the
spocilic seetions from Curcular 230 alleged to have been violated and names the (ax years i
which 13asister failed 10 file a federal income tax return. 1t observes that, as the Respondent i3 o
Centificd Public Accountant, presently authorized to practice before the [RS, he is certainly aware
ol the circumstances giving rise to an obligation 1o file a tax return and that one can defend
apainst these charges by demonstrating that the returns were filed or that bis income was
isufficient o require filling of retums.

"his claim of Respondent is also without merit. The charges could not be clearer. The
specific regulation involved is listed together with the years of the alleged violations. Wlile
those anthorized 1o practice before the IRS are presumed o have sufficient knowledge Lo deud
with IRS matiers, even one without such specialized knowledge would be able 1o appreciate the
nature o the charges set
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Forth in the Complaint.

RS also takes 1ssue with Respondent’s claim that the regulation addressing supplemental
charpes precludes the filing of the Amended Complaint, 1t asserts thal 31 CIR.§10.59 (July
1994) does not bay an amendment when additional violations arc discovered. To the contrary,
IRS notes that 31 C.F.R. § 10.50(a) permits thic Secretary of the Treasury or his delegate Lo
censure, suspend or disbar practitioners, as long as there has been potice and an oppartunity o
respond. Here, Respondent became aware of the amended charges when the motion to amend
the Complaint was fited in August 7003, The Court agrees with the IRS™s position. 31 C.1WR,
10.59 (1994), (now revised s Section 10.65 (2002)), in no way limits the amendment of &
complaint in the manner suggested by Respondent. Rather, it is abviously a ool to inhibit those
facing & complaint {from any templation to make proundless denials in answers or 10 otherwisc
subvert the disciplinary process, The IRS is correct in its understanding of the clear precept thi
complaints, and answers, pencrally may be frecly amended.

Last, Respondent contends that the Complaint was issued in violation of the
administrative procedural proteclions which must be followed before the Complainl ¢an be
initiated, Respondent asserls that the Amended Complaint “skipped cvery part of the process” by
failing (o first establish a writlen referral by an IRS employee, by failing to have the Direetor
fwsue u written report, by failing 1o notify the Respondent of the alleged problem, by failing to
pive the Respondent an opportunily to achieve compliance, and by failing to provide the
ltespondent a conference 1o discuss the issuc with the Director, As authority, Respondent ciles
31 €10 8§ 10,53, 10.54, and 10.55. Respondent contends that failurc to follow this process
violates Mr. Danister’s right 1o due process,

The (RS contes(s this claim that the Amended Complaint must be dismissed because it
filed to first observe all the procedures in Circular 230. Observing again that, in peneral,
amendments to administrative pleadings are allowed, it notes that in this instance judicial
ceonomy is served by addressing all charpes against {he Respondent in one disbarment
proceeding.

Iere again, Respondent’s conlentions arc meritless. 1IRS Repulations 10.53, 10.54 and
10.55, (10,53, 10.60 and 10.61, respectively, under the revised ropulations), do not bar the RS
from amending a complaint as Respondent has supgested, Scetion 10,53 addresses the duty of
L5 CIIOYECs WIepah susnectl pravtice vielnlions, but it certainly dnes not act as 4 de {acto
beericr, by imposing a condition precedent to the institution of a complaint. As for Section
10,54, that seetion relers 1o the institution of a proceeding. That has already occurred in this case
by virine of the filing of the originat (i.e. First) Complaint. Tn addition, even that provision
provides an exception o the procedurcs where, among other exceptions, willfulness is involved.
The Amended Complaint deals with just that, swillfully failing” to make (i.e. file ) a required
federal tax retur
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dent’s contentions and conscquently

Accordinuly, the Conrt rejects gach of the Respon
aint is DENJED.

e Respondent’s Motion 1o Dismiss the Amended Compl

S0 ORDERED,

William B. Moran
United Staies Administrative Law Judge

Dated: November 17, 2003
Washington, 1.C.

P.
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T the Matter of Joscph R, Banister. Respondent
Compliint No. 2003-2

CERTIFICATE OF SLERVICTE

1 certify that a true copy of Order On Respondent’s Motion To Dismiss The Amended
Complaint, daled November 17, 2003, was scnt (his day in the following mamer to the
addicssecs Jisted below:

- . / |
o, drlitog et A
\. Nelida Torres //
Legal Stalt Assistant

Dated: Noyewber 17, 2003

Copy by First Class Regular Mail and Faesimile 10!

Jay J. Kessler, Altorney
[nternal Revenue Service
General Legal Services

133 Market Strect, Suite 1200
Gan Francisea, CA 94103

Copy by Certificd Mail Retum Receipt and Facsimile to:

Robert G. Bernbofi, Esquire

Robert 1. Barnes, Esquite

Vhe Law Office of Robert G.Bemhoft
207 st Bulialo Street, Suite 600
Milwaukee, W1 53202

Copy by Regular Mail to:
Jaseph R, Bunister, CPA

22472 Sunay Vista Drive
San Jose, CA 95128
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